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CHAIRPERSON’S
INTRODUCTION
The Chief Executive’s Report provides more details about
the specific impacts.
The JAS-ANZ team has responded in a truly agile manner
to the change in business climate. The team has kept the
accreditation system operating and has even found ways
to improve what we do and how we do it.

This 2019–20 Annual Report outlines the progress
JAS-ANZ has made towards achieving the strategic
‘themes’ of the Statement of Corporate Intent (SCI)
2019–22. It also describes JAS-ANZ’s response to the
COVID-19 pandemic.
The past year can be divided into 2 parts: the preCOVID-19 months (July 2019 to February 2020) and the
COVID-19 months (March to June).
During the pre-COVID-19 period, JAS-ANZ was making
steady progress against our work program.
Since February we have had to adapt our operations to
manage the uncertainty created by the global pandemic.
The main impacts of COVID-19 on the JAS-ANZ business
have been the:
•

suspension of travel

•

reduction in expenditure with as little impact as
possible on operations

•

switch to remote working to ensure that the
accreditation system continues to operate

•

establishment of remote meeting arrangements
for the Board, Technical Advisory Council and
Accreditation Review Board.

As a result of the travel restrictions imposed in New
Zealand and Australia, all planned face-to-face
assessments of Conformity Assessment Bodies (CABs)
and associated witness audits had to be rearranged as
remote undertakings. This meant that ’Zoom’ and ‘Teams’
meetings had to be organised and multiple flights and
accommodation had to be cancelled.
Within a week of going into lockdown JAS-ANZ had
developed procedures and support materials to facilitate
the necessary remote activities to occur. This was greatly
assisted by the work that had previously been done by our
team trialling remote audits and the practical application
of International Accreditation Forum (IAF) protocols.
Evidence of the success of this was our ability to process
a new application from a CAB within 4 months, from
application to approval. This involved witnessing via a
remote camera to observe the auditor carrying out their
assessment on a construction site.
With regard to investment in infrastructure, we have
successfully upgraded the technology platform and the
Canberra office has undergone a refit that incorporates
technology to support working remotely with our clients.
The operations team rewrote our assessor training
program and launched the JAS-ANZ Accelerate Training
Academy. The Academy provides access to online
training resources for individuals outside the organisation.
The team also made progress on the strategic theme of
developing a portfolio of schemes by creating a scheme
evaluation framework.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019–20 | 2

The implementation of this is one of the items that has been
put on hold until the business environment is more stable
and the longer-term impact of COVID-19 is understood.

During the 2019–20 financial year we said farewell to Justin
Roberts-Smith and Jo Buchanan; I would like to thank them
for their contributions to the Board and JAS-ANZ.

JAS-ANZ continued to expand its involvement in
international forums – the IAF and the Asia Pacific
Accreditation Cooperation (APAC) – and has taken
leadership roles in both.

Financial performance over the year was within expectations.
As outlined in the audited accounts there was a surplus of
$173,782 and JAS-ANZ remains a going concern with assets
outweighing liabilities.

JAS-ANZ’s Governing Board, Technical Advisory Council
(TAC) and Accreditation Review Board (ARB) oversee the
accreditation system. The TAC plays the key role of a
representative stakeholder group; it provides valuable
stakeholder feedback and is a channel for varied
interested parties to voice their views. The ARB ensures
the integrity of accreditation decision-making, and plays
an important role working with management on process
improvement within the accreditation process.

This is a pleasing result as it reflects JAS-ANZ’s prudent
approach to expenditure; however, it should not be
considered the norm for the future. We are continuing to
monitor the impact of COVID-19 on revenues and certificate
numbers, and will adjust our financial management to suit
as the long-term impact becomes clearer.

Thank you to all Board members for their ongoing
contributions. I would like to single out Mike Willing who
has continued to serve the Board tirelessly, and I thank
him for his flexibility as we managed our way through
the uncertainty of recent times. I would also like to
acknowledge Tony Evans as Chair of the TAC and Geoff
Overton as Chair of the ARB for their diligent contributions.

Howard Duff
Acting Chairperson
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REPORT
STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT
Restrictions on travel and social contact affected a number of
activities listed in the JAS-ANZ Statement of Corporate Intent
(SCI) 2019–22. These restrictions, along with general
uncertainty, led to the suspension of some activities, and to
others not starting. Some of the proposed activities will need
to be redesigned because they depend on high levels of
social interaction and do not adapt readily to online activity.
Annex 1 provides a summary of activities outlined in the
SCI 2019–22 and the status of each at 30 June 2020.

Since early March 2020, JAS-ANZ has substantially adjusted
its operations to address the challenges of social isolation
and travel restrictions that have resulted from the
COVID-19 pandemic.
The main impacts on the accreditation system have been:
•

Assessments are now delivered online, and witnessing
(observation of auditors on site) has been cancelled.

•

Approximately one-third of our anticipated annual
assessment workload was undertaken remotely.

•

Applications for accreditation continued to be
submitted and were above the levels for the
comparable period in 2018.

•

Technical services activity such as scheme
development has decreased.

•

Regional capacity building projects (e.g. the Pacific Island
Forum and the ASEAN–Australia–New Zealand Free
Trade Agreement (AANZFTA)) have been postponed.

•

Participation in international meetings has been
cancelled into 2021.

•

Video conferencing arrangements have been put in
place for Governing Board, Technical Advisory Council
and Accreditation Review Board meetings.

•

Filling staff vacancies has been postponed.

To move the accreditation system back into the standard
planning and reporting cycle, we have been developing a
‘bridging SCI’ that will cover activities from December 2020
to June 2021.
Central to the ‘bridging SCI’ is the view that remote activity
will become a mainstay of our future assessment program.
Remote delivery has been successful and is at least as
effective as on-site activity, but with a significantly lower
cost. A high priority for the ‘bridging SCI’ will be activities
and investments that support remote delivery, such as:
•

upgrading our CAB portal system

•

improving our remote meetings capability

•

developing methods and skills that complement
remote service delivery.

Over the last few months, we have been exploring remote
service delivery options with our counterparts in the
United Kingdom Accreditation Service (UKAS).
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OUTLOOK
Overall, the accreditation system has continued to
function and deliver the services expected. The sectors
most affected by shutdowns (hospitality, tourism,
sports, entertainment and personal services) do not
have a high level of third-party certifications. Our main
vulnerability is the risk of a delayed effect from any
general downturn in business activity and how this will
influence decisions by certified organisations about
continuing with their certifications.
Under adverse circumstances, surveillance of certified
organisations may be deferred by a certification body for
up to 6 months. We expect to see evidence of certified
organisations reconsidering their certifications from
September when the allowable 6-month deferral period
will lapse for audits that were due in March.
These adjustments have forced JAS-ANZ to change
direction and pace in a way that is likely to enable
JAS-ANZ to deliver accreditation services more
effectively and efficiently.

Dr James Galloway
Chief Executive

A YEAR IN REVIEW
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ABOUT THE JAS-ANZ
ANNUAL REPORT
This Annual Report should be read in conjunction with JAS-ANZ’s
Statement of Corporate Intent (SCI). Together, the two documents
present a roadmap of the organisation’s intention, focus and
strategy, and how the organisation is progressing.
This Annual Report reports on JAS-ANZ’s progress during 2019–20
against the objectives and strategies outlined in the SCI.
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ABOUT JAS-ANZ
The Australian and New Zealand governments established the
Joint Accreditation System of Australia and New Zealand (JAS-ANZ)
in 1991 to strengthen the trading relationship between the two
countries and with other countries.
The JAS-ANZ Treaty is the agreement between
Australia and New Zealand under which the Governing
Board, the Technical Advisory Council (TAC) and the
Accreditation Review Board (ARB) were created,
forming the JAS-ANZ organisation.
The JAS-ANZ Treaty requires JAS-ANZ to operate a joint
accreditation system and to deliver on 4 goals relating to:

JAS-ANZ has a secretariat of 32 employees who help the
Governing Board fulfil its obligations.
JAS-ANZ recognises 143 public and proprietary schemes
over 5 program areas. These are:
•

management systems certification

•

product certification

•

integrity and confidence

•

personnel certification

•

trade support

•

inspection

•

linkages

•

validation and verification.

•

international acceptance.

The schemes provide a level of confidence to support
exchange of products and services across a wide range
of industry sectors.

JAS-ANZ operates on a not-for-profit basis.
The organisation comprises:
•

the Governing Board, which is appointed by the
Australian and New Zealand governments

•

the TAC, which advises the Governing Board on the
operation of the joint accreditation system

•

the ARB, which is responsible for granting, maintaining,
extending, reducing, suspending and withdrawing
conformity assessment bodies’ accreditation.
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JAS-ANZ AND
ACCREDITATION
The Joint Accreditation System of Australia and New Zealand
(JAS-ANZ) was established by the Australian and New Zealand
Governments to provide internationally recognised accreditation
services for certification and inspection activities that support
Australian and New Zealand businesses and consumers.
JAS-ANZ operates as part of an international network of
organisations providing comparable services throughout
the world.
Accredited certification and inspection of products,
processes and people—called conformity assessment
— has many flow-on benefits for business, consumers,
regulators and government by:
•

reducing compliance costs

•

reducing risk

•

streamlining operations

•

breaking down barriers to trade, which provides
greater access to foreign markets

•

providing assurance that goods and services sold are
safe and can be used for their intended purpose.

Accreditation is an audit-based activity that involves a
rolling program of assessing the capabilities of
certification and inspection organisations and then
sampling their activity records to validate performance.
Accreditation is a symbol of assurance—a valuable asset
in itself. The JAS-ANZ symbol is a mark of quality and
reliability. It flags that a certifier or inspector can be relied
on to impartially determine if organisations, products and
people meet standards.
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OUR MISSION, VISION, GOALS AND VALUES
JAS-ANZ aspires to establish and maintain an innovative, agile accreditation system that:
•

enhances national, trans-Tasman and international trade

•

achieves international recognition of the excellence of Australian and New Zealand goods and services.

Figure 1. Mission, vision, goals, values.

1

Mission
To ensure that JAS-ANZ
accreditation enhances
national, trans-Tasman
and international trade.

2

Achieve international
recognition for the excellence of
Australian and New Zealand
goods and services.

Vision
JAS-ANZ will be the
accreditation body of choice
nationally, regionally and
internationally.

3

Values

Goals
Integrity and confidence
Maintain a joint accreditation
system that gives users in
Australia and New Zealand
confidence that goods
and services certified by
accredited bodies meet
established standards.

Trade support
Obtain and maintain acceptance
by Australia’s and New Zealand's
trading partners for domestic
management systems and
exported goods and services.

Linkages
Create links to relevant bodies
that establish or recognise
standards for goods and
services or that provide
conformity assessment.

International acceptance
Obtain mutual recognition
and acceptance of conformity
assessment with relevant
bodies in other countries.

4

JAS-ANZ is committed to providing
leadership in accreditation for
Australia and New Zealand.
Integrity and trust
- Maintaining an ethical organisation that
engenders trust and understanding
in all stakeholders
- Operating and communicating in
a transparent manner.

Creating value through our people
- Providing professional development
- Encouraging innovation
- Encouraging teamwork
- Recognising the significant contributions
of our staff and volunteers.

Professionalism
- Practicing good corporate governance and
meeting all statutory requirements
- Ensuring highly professional personnel
and services.

Customer focus
- Recognising our treaty obligations
to the community
- Adhering to the technical obligations
of our mutual recognition arrangements
- Developing and maintaining
relationships with our stakeholders
- Implementing an effective
communication strategy.

GOVERNANCE AND
MANAGEMENT
This section presents an overview of
JAS-ANZ’s governance and management.
It includes information about:
•
•
•
•
•

JAS-ANZ’s structure
Governing Board
Technical Advisory Council (TAC)
Accreditation Review Board (ARB)
Secretariat.
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JAS-ANZ STRUCTURE
JAS-ANZ’s unique organisational structure and its status as
a not-for-profit organisation are key factors that help it grow
trans-Tasman and international trade – a major aspiration of
both the Australian and New Zealand governments.
JAS-ANZ is structured as follows:
•

The Governing Board is appointed by the
Australian and New Zealand governments to
oversee JAS-ANZ’s operation.

•

The Technical Advisory Council (TAC) is a forum for
stakeholder engagement. The TAC supports the
development of stakeholder-representative policies
and principles that underpin operation of the joint
accreditation system.

•

The Accreditation Review Board (ARB) is responsible
for granting, maintaining, suspending and
withdrawing conformity assessment bodies’
accreditation. In this capacity it has an important
role in overseeing JAS-ANZ’s decision-making.

A Secretariat carries out the day-to-day operations and
management of JAS-ANZ and supports the Governing
Board to fulfil its obligations.
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Figure 2. JAS-ANZ’s core accreditation network.
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GOVERNING BOARD
The Australian and New Zealand governments appoint the
Governing Board to oversee JAS-ANZ’s operations.
The JAS-ANZ Treaty guides the functions of the Governing Board.
MEMBERSHIP
The Governing Board normally comprises 10 members; 6
are appointed by the Australian Government and 3 are
appointed by the New Zealand Government. JAS-ANZ
has maintained a Board of 9 members since December
2019, while the appointment of a vacant position
allocated to Australia is being finalised.

During the COVID-19 pandemic JAS-ANZ hosted monthly
meetings to keep board members updated on the
unfolding situation. These meetings were held separately
from the official board meetings and no decisions were
passed during these briefing sessions.

The JAS-ANZ Chairperson and Vice Chairperson are
appointed jointly by the Australian and New Zealand
ministers from among the appointed members of the
Governing Board. Howard Duff has been Acting
Chairperson since December 2019.

RETIRED BOARD MEMBERS
Justin Roberts-Smith – December 2019

Table 1. JAS-ANZ Governing Board meeting attendees in 2019–20.
NUMBER OF MEETINGS ELIGIBLE
TO ATTEND

NUMBER ATTENDED

Joanne Buchanan

4

3

Suzanne Campbell

4

4

Howard Duff

4

4

Robin Fardoulys AM

4

4

James Galloway

4

4

Veronica Jacobsen

4

4

Jeanette Roberts

4

4

Justin Roberts-Smith

2

2

Martin Squire

4

3

Mike Willing

4

4

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

Howard Duff
(Acting Chairperson)

Joanne Buchanan

Jeanette Roberts

Robin Fardoulys AM
(Vice-Chairperson)

Suzanne Campbell

Martin Squire

James Galloway
(Chief Executive)

Veronica Jacobsen

Mike Willing
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TECHNICAL ADVISORY
COUNCIL
It is vital that the mechanism by which accreditation policies and
principles are developed is impartial and transparent. This is
achieved by involving stakeholders in the process. The JAS-ANZ
Governing Board appoints the Technical Advisory Council (TAC) as
a forum for such stakeholder involvement.
RESPONSIBILITIES
The responsibilities of the TAC are to:
•

provide advice to the Governing Board on matters
relating to the joint accreditation system including:
ū policy matters regarding ARB operation
ū implementation of those policies
ū performance of the ARB’s accreditation functions.

•

develop and recommend to the Governing Board
rules or procedures to enable the ARB to:
ū deal with applications for accreditation
assessments
ū grant, maintain, extend, reduce, suspend and
withdraw accreditation
ū act as a delegate of the Board in overseeing or
reviewing nominated projects undertaken by the
Secretariat
ū oversee the work of any technical committees or
consultative committees.

ACTIVITIES
The TAC work program involves:
•

reviewing conformity assessment schemes operated
by JAS-ANZ

•

reviewing the effectiveness of product certification

•

reviewing business development processes

•

analysing audit duration measures

•

overseeing the ARB.

MEMBERSHIP
The TAC is structured to give a voice to the diverse
stakeholders of JAS-ANZ. Membership encompasses
representatives from key stakeholder groups including
certification and inspection bodies, purchasers of
certification and inspection body services, regulators
and consumers.

RESIGNATIONS
John Buchanan – December 2019
Carol Grossman – January 2020

NEW APPOINTMENTS
Leon Michailidis – July 2019
Teresa McGaugh – January 2020
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MEETINGS
The TAC met twice during 2019–20.
Table 2. TAC meeting attendees in 2019–20.
NUMBER OF
MEETINGS
ELIGIBLE TO
ATTEND

NUMBER

NAME

ORGANISATION

REPRESENTING

Enzo Alfonsetti

Energy Safe Victoria

Regulators

2

2

Tony Bennett

Telarc SAI, New Zealand

Certification bodies

2

0

John Buchanan

DTS Food Assurance

Inspection bodies

2

0

Marie Colwell

Colwell Sacerdoti Healthcare
Management Consultants

Health and
human services

2

2

Tony Evans
(Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Various sectors
and services

2

2

Carol Grossman

Department of Agriculture

Australian
Government

2

1

Alex Kay

Ministry of Business,
Innovation & Employment

New Zealand
Government

2

2

Heather Mahon

SAI Global

Conformity
Assessment Body

2

2

Ian McAlister

Consumer Electronics
Suppliers’ Association

User groups

2

2

Teresa McGaugh

WELS – Department of
Agriculture

Regulator

2

2

Leon Michailidis

Equal Assurance

Conformity
Assessment Body

2

2

Kevin Newhouse

Australian Building Codes
Board

Industry

2

2

Geoff Overton

Retired, aviation industry

Industry

2

2

Shona Scott
(Vice Chair)

Ministry for Primary
Industries

Regulators

2

2

James Thomson

Australian Industry Group

Industry

2

1

ATTENDED

21 | JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND

Marty
Vandermolen

Department of Industry,
Science, Energy and Resources

Australian
Government

2

2

Hamish Wilson

Consumer New Zealand

Consumers

2

2

Darryl Yaniuk

Management Systems
Consultant

Industry

2

2
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ACCREDITATION REVIEW
BOARD
Appropriate input into, and deliberation about, accreditation
decision-making are fundamental to JAS-ANZ’s overarching mission
and key value proposition. To this end, the JAS-ANZ Governing Board
appoints a separate Accreditation Review Board (ARB).
MEMBERSHIP

MEETINGS

The General Manager Accreditation is a standing member
of the ARB; all other ARB members are appointed to serve
on a part-time basis in an honorary capacity. Members are
appointed for their experience and expertise and are
drawn from a cross-section of industries and technologies.

One in-person meeting of the full ARB took place
during 2019–20. Most of the ARB’s work encompassing
decision-making, monitoring and general communication
is achieved through a dedicated ARB portal.

Table 3. ARB meeting attendees in 2019–20.
NUMBER OF
NAME

ORGANISATION

MEETINGS ELIGIBLE
TO ATTEND

NUMBER
ATTENDED

Anthony Bartolo
(Deputy Chair)

Contractor

1

1

Mike Batty

Fisher & Paykel Healthcare,
New Zealand

1

1

Simon Dawes

Ernst & Young

1

1

Steve Keeling

JAS-ANZ General Manager
Accreditation

1

1

Marc Morain

Queensland Department of State
Development and Innovation

1

1

Geoff Overton (Chairman)

Retired, aviation industry

1

1

Peter Philips

Retired, ex Department of Defence

1

1

Shona Scott

New Zealand Food Safety Authority

1

1

Darryl Yaniuk

Management Systems Consultant

1

1
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SECRETARIAT
A Secretariat carries out the day-to-day operations and
management of JAS-ANZ.
These activities include:
•

Accreditation: central accreditation
decision-making, impartial complaints
administration and contributions to internal
membership organisations

•

Corporate: fulfilling the obligations of the
JAS-ANZ Treaty

•

Operations: delivering both inward- and
outward-facing functions that complement core
accreditation services

•

Services: meeting client and stakeholder
expectations for service delivery and support.

Currently, the JAS-ANZ Secretariat comprises 32
full-time staff based in offices in Canberra, Australia (24);
Wellington, New Zealand (7); and remotely (1).
Four positions within the Secretariat form an Executive.
The Executive is responsible for the overall performance
of the Secretariat.
Table 4 outlines the individual functions of the
executive members.
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Table 4. Functions of JAS-ANZ executive members.
FUNCTION

DESCRIPTION

Corporate

•

Manage performance against SCI and overall Treaty obligations.

•

Manage planning and execution.

•

Manage business operations and contracts.

•

Manage employment of staff.

•

Provide central decision-making on accreditation, which is both defensible and
enhances operational efficiency.

•

Ensure that an impartial complaints administration operates.

•

Act as contributor to internal membership organisations.

•

Provide leadership, management and responsibility of internal and external services
that support the capacity of JAS-ANZ to deliver its mission.

•

Ensure that support systems are aligned with organisational needs.

•

Provide leadership, management and direction for accreditation services delivery.

•

Lead the development and implementation of an assessment program that enables
JAS-ANZ to carry out its accreditation function.

Accreditation

Operations

Services

MEETING OUR
OBJECTIVES
JAS-ANZ’s planning model follows the format of
Treaty Goals, Strategies (3- to 5-year outlook),
Objectives (1- to 3-year outlook), and Activities
(1-year outlook).
The JAS-ANZ Statement of Corporate Intent
(SCI) defines Treaty goals and their associated
strategies, objectives and activities. This section
outlines the activities undertaken by JAS-ANZ
during 2019–20 in support of the objectives set by
the Governing Board.

03

CONTENTS
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CLIENTS: ACTIVITIES
FOR 2019–20
IMPROVING CAB PERFORMANCE
During 2019–20 we had intended to build on work in
several areas to improve the performance of Conformity
Assessment Bodies (CABs). These were:
•

incorporate self-evaluation into the assessment
routine (re-accreditation process)

•

develop a ranking algorithm for certifiers

•

evaluate the use of self-declaration

•

develop and conduct trials for use of technology
in assessment.

We anticipated carrying out these activities against the
background of a demanding program of assessment and
surveillance activity.
The outcomes for the year were mixed.

DEVELOP RANKING ALGORITHM FOR CERTIFIERS
The preliminary work for commencement of this project
was completed; a project plan and the terms of a
consultancy service agreement with Monash University
were developed. The project remains at that stage and
will be resumed as soon as feasible.

EVALUATE USE OF SELF-DECLARATION
We did not complete this work but have continued to use
self-declarations as the basis for managing transitions to
revised standards and scheme rules. Internal monitoring
has not identified any systemic problems with the current
use of declarations. The proposed evaluation will be
undertaken to identify any adjustments that should be
made to the use of declarations.

SELF-EVALUATION
The application of self-evaluation to the re-accreditation
process was developed but not applied. Our assessment
of self-evaluation responses showed that they fell into
two distinct groups. The first tended to be aspirational
statements rather than a considered analysis of context
and operating competence. The second group
approached evaluation as a part of their own quality
improvement initiatives. Our assessment of self-evaluation
over the year is that it remains a valuable tool within the
accreditation program that can contribute to improved
effectiveness and cost reduction.

DEVELOP AND CONDUCT TRIALS FOR USE OF
TECHNOLOGY IN ASSESSMENT
We did not complete this work and some fundamental
changes will need to be made to the trial to take account
of the changed assumptions about the use and
effectiveness of remote assessment, and the role that
technology can play in assessment.
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ACTIVITIES

OUTCOMES

Incorporate self-evaluation into
assessment routine

This was delayed by enforced changes to assessment practices.

Develop ranking algorithm for certifiers

A contract was prepared and terms agreed; however the start was
postponed due to restrictions. It may be able to begin in September
depending on the willingness of the contract researcher to commence.

Evaluate the use of self-declarations

This will go ahead but will be delayed.

Develop and conduct trials for use of
technology in assessment

This will need to be reworked to reflect the shift of effort towards
video-based remote activity. The trial based on Google glasses has been
deferred and will not proceed until circumstances make it feasible.

MONITORING CAB PERFORMANCE:
AN ONGOING RESPONSIBILITY
The core work program of accreditation is the assessment
and surveillance activity that we conduct each year.
In 2019–20 we anticipated the following program of
activity with marginal increases in response to demand.
Travel restrictions and social isolation had a major impact
on our ability to deliver on this from mid-February 2020.
The projected witnessing and surveillance workload
was reduced. Witnessing involves observation of an
auditor undertaking an audit at a client’s premises.

This activity was halted as lockdown arrangements
were introduced and businesses either ceased
operating or closed their doors to visitors.
JAS-ANZ focused on remote office assessments and deferred
witnessing until 2020–21. This resulted in at least 240 fewer
days spent on witnessing – a reduction of about 32%.
Office assessments were conducted as usual except in
those cases where CABs did not have the infrastructure
or workforce arrangements to operate remotely.
There were also some delays due to the training and
qualification of assessors. Those surveillances scheduled
but not completed as planned have been rescheduled
and will feature in the 2020–21 figures.

Figure 3. Witness assessments.
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With the advent of COVID-19 JAS-ANZ quickly expanded
the remote assessment model which it had been using
informally. Three to 6 months of previously scheduled
face-to-face assessments were rebooked as remote.
Some assessments were unable to be rebooked within
normal time-frames because some home-based CAB
staff had issues with access to their systems.

We have discovered that remote assessment:

The assessment calculator for estimation of time allocation
also had to be remodelled and validated.
All assessors were provided with additional training in
remote assessment activities under an extensive assessor
mentoring program. Regular webinars were developed to
support assessors in what has turned out to be a fundamental
change in the way assessments are conducted.
We also gathered additional data from certified
organisations on the effectiveness of remote activity by
both JAS-ANZ and accredited organisations through
surveys. This will be shared with certification bodies to
help improve remote service techniques.
Accreditation assessments remain entirely online and the
witnessing part of the program was cancelled.
Our assessment of the experience of conducting our
business under conditions of lockdown and travel
restrictions has challenged basic assumptions of what is
necessary to carry out our role.
We developed a strong appreciation of the value of remote
assessment. There is no evidence so far that the use of
remote technology has detracted from assessment
outcomes – in fact, it has enhanced the assessment process.

•

supports better preparation and planning for assessments

•

improves the review of records

•

involves less disruption to the operations of the
organisation being assessed

•

improves the use of supporting technical experts

•

contributes to a more targeted assessment solution.

There are a number of improvements from experience that
can be applied to current practice:
•

Remote assessments generally take longer and systems
can vary in reliability.

•

The number of process contact points and the
administrative load can be reduced.

•

Bespoke assessment plans need to be further developed.

We had the opportunity to share what we had learned with
other accreditation bodies (ABs). This included an exchange
with our counterpart, the United Kingdom Accreditation
Service (UKAS), about the future of service delivery. Both
organisations expect that some of the adaptations made
during this second half of the year can be applied to
improve outcomes and reduce costs.
JAS-ANZ anticipated 152 office assessments throughout
2019–20. Of these, 11 (7.24%) were delayed and will be
carried out in the next financial year.

Figure 4. Office assessments.
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Figure 5. Accredited Organisations: Summary.
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Table 5. Breakdown of assessment activities 2019–20.
ACTIVITY

2020

17
New Zealand
Australia
64
Document
review
Elsewhere
50
Actual numbers as at 30 June 2020

On-site Assessment

PERSON DAYS

876

Planning

297.25

Reporting

226

Follow-ups

15.75

Current Sanctions

Report Reviews
• 4 out of 17 Applications rejected
• 16 Show Causes
5 Suspensions
Remote •Days*
• 2 Withdrawals
• 2 Cancellations
Total • 1 Product Reference Group
• 1 Unscheduled Surveillance

2020

17
New Zealand
120.75
Australia
64
Elsewhere
50
Actual numbers as at 30 June 2020

80.75
161.5
1778

NEW IN-DEMAND
TRAINING ACADEMY TO
IMPROVE STANDARDS
Training services are another way that JAS-ANZ can
help develop the skills and knowledge of CABs for
the benefit of users of accredited certification. Initial
analysis carried out in 2018 on the demand for external
training services showed that it would be worthwhile
offering these services to other stakeholders such as
scheme owners and users of conformity assessment
such as regulators.
The development of a range of training courses to
support skills and knowledge was a priority in
2019–20, leading to the launch of the JAS-ANZ
Accelerate Training Academy.
Designed to improve standards in the accredited
certification industry, the Academy aims to provide
accredited certification professionals with the
knowledge and skills to elevate accreditation and
certification from simple compliance to greater
awareness and an invaluable business advantage.
The target market for the Academy is CABs.
The training will suit:
•

auditors and assessors

•

senior management

•

administration staff.

JAS-ANZ Accelerate Training Academy courses will also
be suitable for:
•

scheme owners and developers

•

regulators and government agencies

•

industry associations

•

other related bodies (e.g. the National Association of
Testing Authorities (NATA), Standards Australia and
International Accreditation New Zealand (IANZ)).

These audiences were surveyed in early 2020
about the training offerings needed. The responses
showed high levels of interest for the Academy
and the proposed training services, in spite of
the various events impacting 2020. There was
particular interest in program standards training
covering ISO/IEC 17021-1 Management System
Certification, ISO/IEC 17065 Product Certification
and IAF Mandatory Documents.
Development of a range of courses for the Academy
began in late 2019 with a focus on online delivery. This
includes online modules, live webinars, videos and case
studies to ensure that training can be undertaken by
clients worldwide.
The training will equip stakeholders with the
fundamental knowledge and skills they need to
consistently assess, interpret and apply standards,
schemes and normative documents.
With the infrastructure and content in place now, JAS-ANZ
is on track to start delivery of training from August 2020.
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DEVELOPING A PORTFOLIO
OF SCHEMES
The main focus for scheme development during the year
was to evaluate the performance of accreditation schemes
offered by JAS-ANZ, and explore the characteristics
associated with effective schemes/scheme ownership.

The endorsed scheme program was evaluated.
All processes were redrafted, and a scheme owner
manual prepared for internal review and for further
development with the Technical Advisory Council.

A well-designed certification scheme starts from the
understanding that it must serve a network of interest
affected by the scheme. Often there is no common
understanding of the problem that a scheme is intended
to resolve or about the outcomes that a given scheme
should deliver.

The implementation strategy for scheme management,
which is currently being drafted, has been deferred until
the first half of 2021. High-priority areas for rationalisation
of overlapping schemes are in:

In the past 12 months we consulted with government,
certification bodies, and non-government scheme
owners about characteristics associated with
high-performing schemes. We now have a much more
refined set of views about:
•

the factors contributing to ‘scheme viability’

•

the inherent risk factors in scheme design and operation

•

more effective criteria for the endorsement and
re-endorsement of schemes

•

circumstances where JAS-ANZ would act as a
custodian of a scheme in the absence of a responsible
scheme owner.

The specific measures we anticipated under scheme
management have been delayed but substantial
progress was made on each.

•

electrical product safety (current project)

•

gas products

•

gas cylinder test stations.

Several rounds of consultation were held with electrical
regulators, certification bodies and industry representatives
about their views on the objectives of product certification.
It is important that these different views align so that
scheme efficiency can be improved.
The implementation of online services for scheme
owners is still being developed. A services description
has been prepared as the basis for consultation
with stakeholders.
The output of this work has been provided to JAS-ANZ
management for review and will be formalised through
the TAC in early 2021.

ACTIVITIES

OUTCOMES

Evaluate program for
endorsed schemes

The endorsed scheme program was evaluated. All processes were re-drafted, and a
draft scheme owner manual has been released for internal review. Release could be
subject to some delay.

Develop an
implementation strategy
to manage schemes

This has been deferred until the first half of 2021. The implementation strategy to
support the scheme owner manual is being drafted. In addition, analysis of existing
schemes has identified rationalisation opportunities in the areas of electrical
product safety (current project) gas products, and gas cylinder test stations.

Develop online services
for scheme owners

This has been deferred until the first half of 2021. This will now be aligned with
the project redeveloping the CAB portals. The services that will be available to the
scheme owners have been scoped. Consultation will occur at the start of the project.
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ENGAGING CERTIFIED
ORGANISATIONS
The purpose of the accreditation system is to help
markets work better. If accreditation does not succeed in
facilitating the exchange of goods and services, its value
is open to question.
Certified organisations are a vital part of the accreditation
system. Our aim has been to extend the services we offer
to certified organisations to improve their experience
and to engage them in the performance of the
accreditation systems.

An important example of the latter is the National
Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) provider market, in
which additional information services to assist in
engaging CABs (NDIS Approved Quality Auditors (AQAs))
could better support service providers. A range of online
tools have been modelled following initial consultations.
We are now considering how to prioritise the trialling and
rollout of services across the wide range of organisations
and businesses that use certification.

With this in mind, we undertook a range of consultations
to understand base-level services that are regularly in
demand and those that are unique to specific schemes
or operating environments.
ACTIVITIES

OUTCOMES

Consult with certified
organisations about what
information they need

Some consultation was carried out but not to the extent that we had planned. This
has been deferred until the first half of 2021.

Develop an information
package for trialling

Modelling of web-based services was completed. Rendering these as web-services
has been deferred.
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STAKEHOLDERS:
ACTIVITIES FOR 2019–20
JAS-ANZ has numerous key stakeholders that have an interest in the
accreditation system. This section outlines the activities that JAS-ANZ
intends to undertake to support these key stakeholders’ objectives.
JAS-ANZ supports stakeholders by:
•

providing expert advice on conformity systems

•

developing relevant certification schemes

•

forming alliances and partnerships that support
delivery of accreditation services

•

maintaining JAS-ANZ’s own international brand
recognition.

MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
AND QUALITY
We began a program to identify trends in major
nonconformities in assessments over the last financial
year, but this was set aside to focus on implementing
changes to remote service delivery.
We helped certifiers make the transition to remote audit
and surveillance activity. An extensive webinar program
was delivered by the Accreditation Services team to help
certifiers and other stakeholders understand how
accreditation and certification services could continue to
be delivered effectively.
The work on evaluating trends in major nonconformities
will be further analysed and applied to assessment
planning and training development. There was no
significant progress on developing the proposed
education white paper.
The infrastructure for delivery of external training was
completed and course content targeting CAB
performance was developed. See Table 6.
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Table 6. Courses for CABs and other stakeholders.
COURSE

LEVEL

TARGET

DELIVERY FORMATS

AVAILABLE

Remote auditing
and assessment:
IAF MD 4

Introductory

Certification bodies,
accreditation bodies

Online

July 2020

Conformity
assessment

Introductory

Certification bodies,
industry, regulators,
scheme owners

Online

August 2020

Principles and
requirements for
certification bodies:
ISO/IEC 17021-1

Introductory

Certification bodies
(management
systems), scheme
owners

Blended learning
In-house

August 2020

Management
systems audit
basics: IAF MD 1, 5
and 11

Introductory

Certification bodies

Online

August 2020

Transfer of
accredited
management
systems certification:
IAF MD 2

Introductory

Certification bodies

Online

August 2020

Emotional
intelligence for
auditors

Intermediate

Certification bodies
and auditors

Online

September 2020

We had intended to develop a wider analysis of the education needs of auditors in conjunction with Massey University
(New Zealand) as a follow-up to work that we did in 2018–19 to develop a training curriculum. This has been interrupted
and will be resumed in 2021.
ACTIVITIES

OUTCOMES

Evaluate assessment
findings for ISO 9001:2015

This has been deferred until the first half of 2021.

Develop and deliver
training that addresses
identified performance
problems for CABs

This is ready to be launched in August 2021.

Develop an education
white paper

This has been deferred until the first half of 2021.
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ENGAGING WITH INDUSTRY SECTORS
JAS-ANZ has clustered its extensive range of activities into
groups that represent similar interests and use of conformity
assessment to support their aims and objectives. JAS-ANZ
operates within 5 broad industry sectors: business and
innovation; environment; food and biological; health and
human services; and product certification.

BUSINESS AND INNOVATION
This sector has experienced growth in the Information
Security Management Systems (ISMS) certification
scheme over the last 12 months, which reflects global
trends. The requirement for organisations to take a
systematic, risk-based approach to the management of
all information has been exacerbated by the COVID-19
global pandemic and increased external and internal
threats. The Asset Management Scheme (AMS), which
requires organisations to consider and manage assets in a
structured, sophisticated way, has also grown in the past
12 months. This also aligns with global trends.
The sector has generally performed well in the past
12 months and had sufficient resources to meet demand.
Some schemes within the sector need to be updated,
however, including the Registered Automobile Workshop
Scheme (RAWS). This depends on action from the
scheme owner.

ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY
The environment and sustainability sector has a substantial
commitment to working with external stakeholders.
JAS-ANZ was active in several areas. It:
•

made contributions to a revised E-Waste certification
standard (AS 5377)

•

provided input to a Food and Agriculture Organization
of the United Nations (FAO) project for certification and
legality of timber supply chains in Papua New Guinea

•

made submissions to Australia’s National Hydrogen
Strategy and the New Zealand Accelerating
Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency project.

A series of revisions to accreditation and certification
schemes were also implemented:
•

Programme for the Endorsement of Forest Certification
(PEFC) Chain of Custody Certification Scheme

•

Energy Management Certification Scheme

•

Greenhouse Gas Emissions reporting schemes

•

Spreadmark Scheme.

A new accreditation standard, ISO/IEC 17029:2019
Conformity assessment — General principles and
requirements for validation and verification bodies,
was published in October 2019. Internal and external
assessor training activities were delivered to support
the implementation of these schemes and standards.
During 2019–20 the environmental and sustainability
sector assessor pool remained stable and, with the help of
the online learning management system, more efficiently
and consistently informed.
In October 2019, the Good Environmental Choice Australia
(GECA) certification withdrew voluntarily from JAS-ANZ
endorsement. Withdrawal was planned and phased to
minimise adverse impacts on certified clients and affected
certification bodies.

FOOD AND BIOLOGICAL
The Global Food Safety Initiative (GFSI) is a major force in
the food and biological sector. In response to the
pandemic, GFSI-benchmarked schemes collectively
agreed to not support remote auditing as an immediate
response and that the expiry date of certificates could be
extended by up to 6 months following a risk assessment.
Transitions were also extended by 6 months.
During the year, JAS-ANZ participated in key scheme
owner conferences and meetings. It attended the Safe
Quality Food Institute’s (SQFI) Conference, the Food Safety
System Certification (FSSC) harmonisation conference, and
the annual Joint Accreditation Body Meeting with Brand
Reputation through Compliance (BRC), International
Featured Standard (IFS) and Global G.A.P. which were held
in October and November 2019. These enabled JAS-ANZ
to engage with scheme owners and other peer
accreditation bodies and industry on the latest
developments and trends aﬀecting the sector.
JAS-ANZ’s project on the evaluation of Google Glass for
conducting remote witnessed audits was well developed,
with the support of 36 CABs to trial the remote technology
and procedures; however, the project was put on hold due
to limitations posed by the pandemic. Since then, JAS-ANZ
and CABs have been conducting remote office assessments
using computers and video-sharing platforms, leading to a
much better understanding of how these remote
technologies could be used.

A draft set of rules was developed and will be
provided for broad stakeholder review and comment
during Q1 2021.

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Health and human services is a diverse portfolio.
Although most certificates sit within occupational health
and safety standards such as ISO 45001:2018, there is
considerable activity in other health and human services
schemes. For example, applications for prospective CABs
for the National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) are
currently being processed, and enquiries are being
received regularly.
The sector is going through a period of change; CABs
and some scheme owners recognise the value of remote
auditing while in other areas some audits have been
suspended temporarily by the scheme owner for a
period due to the high risks involved with COVID-19
e.g. the Designated Audit Agency (DAA) Scheme, and in
the Reproductive Technology Accreditation Committee
(RTAC) Scheme operating under the Board of the Fertility
Society of Australia.
JAS-ANZ uses a wide contractor pool to service the
sector and will continue to do so.

PRODUCT
JAS-ANZ continues to liaise closely with industry and
government stakeholders about existing certification
frameworks and emergent scheme initiatives. JAS-ANZ
has worked closely with the Queensland Electrical
Safety Office, NSW Fair Trading, Energy Safe Victoria and
WorkSafe New Zealand. These engagements have
focused on electrical safety and, in the case of Victoria,
gas safety. Industry engagement about product
conformity and scheme development has extended –
particularly with the Australian Industry Group and the
Consumer Electronics Suppliers’ Association.
The main developments in this sector during 2019–20 were:
•

The WaterMark and CodeMark schemes are a priority
and JAS-ANZ worked closely with the Australian
Building Codes Board (ABCB) on scheme and
CAB-related matters as they arose.

•

International cooperation in the product sector
focused on active engagement with the International
Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) about electrical
appliances, explosion protected equipment and
electronics components supply chain quality.

•

Work to develop a unified electrical equipment safety
certification scheme for Australia and New Zealand
progressed, with increasing interest and active
participation from regulatory authorities and industry.

•

During the year efforts were made to establish
a responsible owner for certification schemes
developed by the Australian Technical Infrastructure
Committee (ATIC). This led to the schemes being
transferred from the NSW Government to NatSpec in
July 2020. JAS-ANZ has supported the ATIC for several
years and will support NatSpec as it takes on ATIC’s
scheme development work.

•

Progress towards a single electrical safety product
certification scheme was hampered from February
onwards; however, we now understand well what
a single scheme can offer. We will continue
working on this into 2021 using remote methods
to engage stakeholders in the development of
the model scheme.

PRODUCT CERTIFICATION
During 2019–20, awareness among industry associations
and regulatory authorities of the benefits of third-party
product certification as a way to mitigate the risk posed by
non-compliant product has increased. JAS-ANZ continues to
provide information and guidance to these stakeholders.
A recurring issue in product certification is product
performance problems that are traceable to an otherwise
conforming product that has been used contrary to its
intended – but nevertheless foreseeable – use, or in
circumstances where the initial conditions of use changed.
This non-compliant use of certified product is outside the
control of the conformity assessment sector, but often reflects
poorly on testing and certification.
Energy Safe Victoria raised this issue with the Technical
Advisory Council (TAC), and it also emerged in separate
discussions with electrical safety regulators. As a result
JAS-ANZ has resolved to explore how certifiers can help
to mitigate problems under our TAC work program.
During the year JAS-ANZ established a Product Reference
Group (PRG). This is an informal group of subject-matter
experts operating under JAS-ANZ’s direction to conduct
a detailed review of the evidence cited by a certification
body as the basis for its attestation. The PRG is available if
there are concerns over the inherent safety or
performance of certified products.
JAS-ANZ often receives enquiries that question the
validity of product certificates of conformity.
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The enquiries primarily come mainly from scheme
owners, administrators, industry and regulators.
Most are concerned with the WaterMark scheme for
plumbing products, but many are also about CodeMark
and electrical safety schemes. During 2019–20 JAS-ANZ
received 26 such enquiries for investigation and resolution.

Relative to the size of the schemes, the number of
inquiries represents a small proportion of the scheme
certificates. All enquiries were investigated, and some
referred to external technical experts for comment.
The outcomes of technical enquiries varied, ranging from
no action through to product withdrawal.

CERTIFICATION

IN

NO ACTION

CAB

CERTIFICATE

PRODUCT

PRODUCT

SCHEME

PROCESS

NECESSARY

SANCTION

HOLDER

WITHDRAWAL

REDESIGN

5

4

9

3

1

WaterMark

1

CodeMark
Electrical Safety

1
2

2

ACTIVITIES

OUTCOMES

Establish Product
Reference Group (PRG) to
evaluate attestations of
conformity

A PRG was convened to evaluate certificates related to aluminium composite panel.
The PRG concept is available for other construction products, electrical products
and safety products (occupational safety and consumer safety).

Develop assessment
routines tailored to the
performance needs of
specific product schemes

This is now a current and developing practice.

BUILDING A GLOBAL PROFILE
INTERNATIONAL LINKAGES AND
PARTNERSHIPS
JAS-ANZ met all its obligations as a member of the
International Accreditation Forum (IAF) and the
International Laboratory Accreditation Cooperation (ILAC).
JAS-ANZ General Manager Accreditation holds the position
of the Chair of the IAF Technical Committee, and the
General Manager Operations co-convenes 2 IAF Technical
Committee working groups. All JAS-ANZ staff members
who attend the IAF meetings are active participants in
various committees, working groups and task forces.
Regionally, JAS-ANZ continues to be an active member of
the newly formed Asia Pacific Accreditation Cooperation
(APAC). General Manager Services is the Chair of the APAC
Technical Committee 2 (TC2) and a member of the APAC
Executive Committee and Mutual Recognition Arrangement
(MRA) Council Management Committee.

As the International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC)
member body for Australia, JAS-ANZ continues to
provide Technical Report Forms (TRFs) which supplement
IEC TRFs for National Deviations. JAS-ANZ continues to
recognise 7 certification bodies in the IECQ system.
JAS-ANZ worked towards becoming the member body for
the IEC conformity assessment system for certification to
standards for equipment for use in explosive atmospheres
(IECEx) during the year; this process is close to being finalised.
In addition to representing Australia at the IEC-organised
meetings, a JAS-ANZ staff member is a member of the
Australian National Committee of the IEC, which is a
committee operated by Standards Australia, and which
represents Australia’s interests in the field of
electrotechnical standardisation.
Due to COVID-19, JAS-ANZ has continued to participate in
the above meetings remotely.
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ACTIVITIES

OUTCOMES

Participate in IAF, ILAC and
APAC activities

JAS-ANZ representatives attended all IAF, ILAC and APAC meetings scheduled in
2019–20.
Four staff members attended the IAF and ILAC meeting in October 2019. The IAF
and ILAC meeting scheduled for April 2020 was cancelled as a result of COVID-19.

Provide support for IAF
Technical Committee
Chair

A JAS-ANZ staff member continues to chair the IAF Technical Committee, which
concludes after the October 2021 scheduled meeting.
The IAF Technical Committee Chair is also a member of the IAF Executive
Committee and the IAF/ILAC Joint Executive Committee.

Provide support for APAC
Technical Committee
Chair

A JAS-ANZ staff member continues to chair the Technical Committee, TC 2 Chair for
Certification Bodies, and Validation and Verification Bodies.
JAS-ANZ is also represented on the Executive Committee and MRA Council
Management Committee.

Maintain Member Body
status for the IECQ and
IECEE

JAS-ANZ continues as the Australian Member Body for the IECQ and IECEE
conformity assessment systems.
Discussion with Standards Australia on JAS-ANZ becoming the Member Body for
the IECEx conformity assessment system commenced.

Contribute to IAF strategic
process

As a member of IAF, JAS-ANZ contributes to the IAF strategic process.
As JAS-ANZ has a staff member on the IAF Executive Committee and IAF/ILAC Joint
Executive Committee, JAS-ANZ continues to have input to the IAF strategic process.

TRADE SUPPORT
Trade support activity over the year was centred on
assistance to the Department of Industry, Science,
Energy and Resources (DISER) on the conformity
assessment elements of the Department’s trade
facilitation program, including:
•

the Australia–EU Free Trade Agreement

•

bilateral trade with the United Kingdom.

Most of the work was carried out through written
proposals and submissions. A workshop was held with
EU officials under the direction of the Department of
Foreign Affairs and Trade (DFAT) and DISER to provide
details of conformity assessment practices and processes.
A project proposal developed by ATIA members in
support of the ASEAN–Australia–New Zealand FTA was
finalised but was not formally agreed to before the
imposition of travel restrictions. Following discussions
with TIA members convened by DISER, the project has
now been postponed until circumstances make it
feasible to undertake the work program.

JAS-ANZ participated in a workshop with members of
the Pacific Island Forum in support of the development
of quality infrastructure for Pacific Island nations. Work on
needs analysis will resume when circumstances permit.
Subsequent post-workshop consultation and needs
analysis were interrupted and there is no indication when
these will resume. The most likely phases to go ahead are
in the areas of standards and measurement. Any work in
accreditation (testing and certification) will require
detailed exchanges on needs analysis to determine its
scope and priorities.
Work was proposed in the SCI 2019–22 to support
transfer of certifiers from the Gulf Accreditation Council
(GAC) to JAS-ANZ in support of Halal Certification.
There was no progress on this from the GAC. It is unlikely
to proceed unless there are some firm objectives and
commitments made by the GAC.
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ACTIVITIES

OUTCOMES

Commence proposed
AANZFTA project on
approval

This project has been frequently delayed at the ASEAN secretariat level. DISER
convened a meeting of ATIA participants in June to discuss the AANZFTA Support
Unit’s wish to move forward. The consensus was that delivery was not feasible and
the preferred position was that the project should be postponed until such time as
it was possible to undertake the work program. DISER supported this and put the
case for deferral to ASEAN which was accepted.

Participate in proposed
Pacific Islands Forum
workshop

Completed.

Support DFAT’s Action
Plan to address Non-Tariff
Barriers

Completed as intended (on request).

COLLABORATION AND ALLIANCES
Progress towards our collaboration and alliance objectives
was affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, which disrupted
travel and diverted our efforts to maintain operations.
A training support program covering ISO/TS 22003:2013
(requirements for bodies providing audit and certification of
food safety management systems) and revisions to ISO
22000 (requirements for a food safety management system)
was delivered to the Singapore Accreditation Council (SAC).
The training focused on key areas of resource and process
requirements such as determination of audit duration
(including multi-sites audit). The participants included SAC
assessors, committee members and representatives of
certification bodies.
Collaboration with the United Kingdom Accreditation
Service (UKAS) on remote surveillance methods and data
strategies for monitoring began. This has taken a different
direction than originally thought and we have now moved
to a broader exchange on options for the future of
assessment activity. This will still incorporate remote
surveillance and data analysis in assessment; however, we
aim to develop them as part of our standard assessment
activity rather than as casual tools. JAS-ANZ has provided
work in progress on a ranking tool for certifier performance
and a concept model for future assessment activity. The
UKAS is focusing on risk assessment of certifier performance.
We had planned for work with the Gulf Accreditation
Centre (GAC) to support the development of the Halal
certification scheme. This did not occur, and we do not
expect to see any progress in this in the foreseeable future.

We worked with the National Association of Testing
Authorities (NATA) and International Accreditation New
Zealand (IANZ) on general training and awareness of
infrastructure services. This was extended to focus on the
test and certification of Personal Protective Equipment.
Implementation of recommendations from the New
Zealand Review of Conformance Policy and Infrastructure
contributed to a more structured collaboration across all
technical infrastructure services within New Zealand.
The main vehicle for this was through the New Zealand
Standards, Accreditation and Metrology (SAM) forum
coordinated by the Ministry of Business, Innovation and
Employment (MBIE). Options were developed to liaise
with the Australian Technical Infrastructure Alliance (ATIA)
but this has been deferred.
There were no significant changes to our portfolio of
cooperation agreements with domestic and international
organisations for delivery of accreditation services.
JAS-ANZ met regularly with stakeholders such as the
Association of Accredited Certification Bodies (AACB)
and the Independent International Organisation for
Certification (IIOC). These provided important
opportunities for direct feedback from certification
bodies about any matters of concern or interest.
A joint meeting with the IIOC Board had been scheduled
for November 2020 but was cancelled in March.
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INTERNAL: ACTIVITIES
FOR 2019–20
GOVERNANCE, RISK AND COMPLIANCE
Governance within JAS-ANZ relies heavily on coordinated
activity within the organisation via the Governing Board,
the Technical Advisory Council (TAC) and the Accreditation
Review Board (ARB). Since March, the usual meeting
arrangements for each have been set aside and replaced
with online meetings.
In anticipation that the disruption to usual meeting
schedules will continue, we conducted an evaluation of
available software systems to service meetings of the
Governing Board and the TAC.

GOVERNANCE
JAS-ANZ is guided by a set of policy documents that
provide general direction for conduct and decision-making.
As part of a rolling policy review our workplace policies
were reviewed by independent legal counsel to reflect
changes to relevant law and practice in Australia and New
Zealand. The proposed updates were presented to staff for
comment before being released formally.

RISK
The risk management framework has been revised from
AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009 to bring it into line with AS ISO
31000:2018 (Risk management – Guidelines). The risk
process operates as an integrated element of the
organisation’s planning processes through JAS-ANZ’s
Statement of Corporate Intent.
Despite the disruption to operations, the present
changes to our operations do not severely change our
risk profile. The likelihood of some risks occurring has
increased, as has the likelihood of consequences from
other risks. These are not new risks, however, and we
consider them to be manageable with the controls we
have in place.

COMPLIANCE
The main compliance tasks set out for 2019–20 were to
complete a review of workplace policies and to submit
documentation to the Asia Pacific Accreditation
Cooperation (APAC) to substantiate our claim to have
effectively transitioned to ISO/IEC 17011:2017 (Conformity
assessment — Requirements for accreditation bodies
accrediting conformity assessment bodies).
ISO/IEC 17001 sets requirements for the competence,
consistent operation and impartiality of accreditation
bodies assessing and accrediting conformity assessment
bodies. APAC advised JAS-ANZ in early March 2020 that
our submission had been accepted as compliant.
This completes the formal preconditions for our Peer
Evaluation in 2021.
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Table 7. Changes in risk profile.
DIRECTION

OBSERVED CHANGES IN RISK
AND OPPORTUNITY

RISK
Business continuity risk

Increase

The potential for significant
disruption to operations remains.
This is due to the end of an
allowable deferral of six months for
the audit of certified organisations.
The deferral period will start
drawing to a close from September
and there is an increased risk that
certified organisations may decide
not to continue under changed
business conditions.

Opportunistic certifier behaviour

Increase

The risk of opportunistic behaviour
by some accredited organisations
has increased.

Work, health and safety (WHS)
from working from home

Increase

The extended period of working
from home arrangements
increased some aspects of
WHS risk because of limitations
on undertaking workplace
assessments.

Redevelop assessment services
model

Increase

Remote service delivery has been
no less effective than on-site
assessment.

Consolidate gains from remote
communication

Increase

Remote working had been used
casually until it became essential
from February/March 2020. The key
observations from that experience
are that remote working has
significantly reduced service
delivery costs, unproductive travel
time, and travel fatigue.

OPPORTUNITY
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COMPLAINTS
There were 7 complaints lodged against JAS-ANZ
during 2019–20. The complaints and outcomes are
shown in Table 8.
Table 8. Complaints lodged against JAS-ANZ during 2019–20, and their outcomes.
COMPLAINT

FINDINGS/ACTION

Not satisfied with the findings from a document
review

The General Manager Services reviewed the document
review findings and found them to be appropriate.
The applicant had not provided the necessary document
referencing.

A JAS-ANZ assessor failed to attend a scheduled
witness that had been planned

This was an individual’s error. Changes have been made
to the planning and scheduling process to alert staff
when travel bookings have not been made.

Various issues: communication, delays, website
operation invoicing and behaviour of assessor.

All matters were investigated, and a response provided,
including how to reduce the likelihood of these issues
being raised in the future.

Invoices were sent to the wrong email address

The problem arose from an individual’s error and a break in
a link between software systems.
Temporary staff were employed to prevent a recurrence.
Invoices were reissued and the settlement time was
extended.

Serious concerns regarding the efficacy of the
document review of their NDIS application.
Advice inconsistent with advice given to other CBs

The actual requirements of the scheme were explained
to the complainant and they acknowledged that there
was no inconsistency in advice given to NDIS applicants.

Claim that major nonconformities were not
discussed at the closing meeting

This is still being investigated.

Not satisfied with the last two assessments. Claim
that the assessor was not considering the facts.

This is still being investigated.

The average time for processing complaints was 26 days.
One complaint was lodged with an external party.
This involved a disputed certification under the
CodeMark Scheme which was referred to the Australian
Building Codes Board (ABCB). The same matter was also
raised with the Department of Industry, Science, Energy
and Resources (DISER) in a Senate Estimates hearing.

JAS-ANZ provided such materials as it had in its possession
to both the ABCB and DISER to assist in their responses.
The Board of Professional Engineers of Queensland sought
details about the withdrawal of certifications for Aluminium
Composite Panels, JAS-ANZ provided the information
sought and the Board determined no further action.
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PROTECTING BRAND IDENTITY
During 2019–20, JAS-ANZ made exciting progress
towards its intended rebrand. Following both internal
and external stakeholder consultation, BrandMatters
provided recommendations on the new brand
positioning and aspirational brand culture. We are
currently considering a number of logo/accreditation
mark designs and these will also be subject to
stakeholder consultation to ensure:

We have received positive feedback from these surveys and
initial results suggest the support provided has had a
positive effect on remote assessment preparation, with 80%
of respondents feeling participants were well prepared to
conduct the remote assessment. The interviews have
provided JAS-ANZ with the opportunity to have open
conversations with Assessors and CABs and provide
valuable feedback both ways.

•

the final product reflects JAS-ANZ

•

maintains the existing brand recognition 
(particularly important for the accreditation mark)

JAS-ANZ established a presence on Twitter in April 2020 to
keep stakeholders up to date with the COVID situation and
other JAS-ANZ news.

•

works across all applications

•

can be registered

•

can be controlled through intellectual property (IP)
legislation in countries of operation.

Due to the pandemic, a number of planned workshops
had to be cancelled until further notice. The 2020
Qualcon Conference was also cancelled.
JAS-ANZ has increased its communications to support
stakeholders during this time and continues to keep CABs
updated on the situation through a series of monthly
circulars. Due to a sudden shift to remote assessments we
have also taken the initiative to roll out post-assessment
surveys and follow-up phone interviews. From these we
get timely feedback so that we can refine our processes
quickly and offer further support to CABs and assessors in
conducting the remote assessment.
ACTIVITIES

OUTCOMES

Hold industry
communication workshop

This has been completed in part under the branding project. Other elements have
been deferred and the option will be revisited in 2021.

Develop a website
portal for media and
communications

This was completed in August 2019.

Complete intellectual
property management
strategy

This has been delayed but is expected to be completed before the end of 2020.
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RESPONDING TO TECHNOLOGY
Information systems are leveraged by all JAS-ANZ
stakeholders to successfully discharge relevant duties.
During the year we:
•

rapidly modified systems to support a work-fromhome environment and a shift to remote assessments

•

completed a major expansion of video conferencing
facilities at the Canberra office, with Wellington
currently under way

•

completed a major review of JAS-ANZ systems in order
to provide a holistic approach to future changes.

We completed a major infrastructure upgrade for all
networking, wireless, servers, storage, and firewall in the
Canberra office. Server resources have now been
concentrated in the Canberra office, with off-site replication
occurring to ensure business continuity. An enhanced
VPN and security suite was deployed to all JAS-ANZ
devices to consolidate our new security systems.
A major review of JAS-ANZ systems was undertaken with
an emphasis on systems support for process improvement
and knowledge management in response to shifting

service delivery demands. We anticipate much greater
reliance on remote working methods even after travel
restrictions and social distancing measures have been
lifted. In turn this puts a premium on systems and tools
that can improve support for remote collaboration and
service delivery.
This shift in how we need to approach service delivery
led to a re-examination of what was required of our
existing systems, including those we had proposed in the
SCI 2019–22. Work on CAB portals and the WordFlow
implementation was deferred and as a result effort was
shifted to developing a revised systems model.
This included:
•

responding to expected service delivery changes

•

meeting future knowledge management needs

•

public certificate register redevelopment.

A work plan for systems redevelopment was completed.
This incorporates and remodels the commitments made
in the SCI 2019–22 and is in final stages of internal review.

ACTIVITIES

OUTCOMES

Review and develop
a plan for JAS-ANZ’s IT
infrastructure

A full review was completed by December 2019. Infrastructure in the Canberra
office has been completely upgraded.

Commence digitisation of
records

A broader review was completed and a business case developed to take advantage
of this body of work.

Upgrade CAB portals

A broader review was completed and a business case developed to take advantage
of this body of work.

STAFFING AND CAPABILITIES
A workforce planning exercise had been under way to
identify JAS-ANZ’s personnel needs for future projections,
and to plan how we would attain and develop personnel
and skills; however, this exercise was deferred in March and
will need to be re-evaluated.
The main reason for deferral is due to the shift in emphasis
created by the move to remote working. Before travel
restrictions were introduced, our basic service model was
based on a flexible contract assessor team. This has been
affected by less witnessing activity and by the impact of
remote assessment work.

Before we can complete a meaningful workforce
planning exercise, we need to understand the future role
of witnessing and the likely role of remote assessment in
our future activities. As an extension of this we will also
need to re-examine work that had started on defining
behavioural competencies, particularly those that would
support a changed assessment model.
Proposed work on internal evaluation projects led by staff
with training in evaluation methodology and supported
by mentoring from an expert evaluator was deferred.
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RECRUITMENT
We had anticipated that by early 2020 we would be ready
to fill 5 roles in our permanent staff. These were:
Operations team (3)
•

Technical Manager

•

Business Development Coordinator

•

Scheme Management

Services team (1)
•

Health and Human Services Sector Manager

Corporate (1)
•

Filling these vacancies was postponed until we
understood whether we were likely to experience any
certification downturn from September.
Another 2 full-time assessment positions are still being
evaluated and will depend on the structure of future
assessment activity.
Despite the impact on recruitment plans, JAS-ANZ has a
sufficient pool of assessors in Australia and New Zealand to
meet demands, and an extensive pool of assessors is
maintained to support assessment work overseas.
A major outcome over the year was the completion of the
new assessor training program.

Legal and Policy Officer
ACTIVITIES

OUTCOMES

Complete and maintain
workforce planning

This was completed.

Continue to implement and
roll out the competency
behavioural framework

This is in progress.

Review and update
scheme-specific
competency requirements

This is in progress.

STAFF WORKSHOP
JAS-ANZ holds an annual staff workshop which brings
together all staff and explores with stakeholders a variety
of issues. This is one of our main activities in building our
culture and capabilities.
A staff workshop was held in September 2019. Five
certifiers were invited to attend the 2019 all-staff
workshop to give their perspective/feedback on what
does and does not work when dealing with JAS-ANZ.
Challenges in common were noted, and the workshop
concluded with a panel discussion.

The issues raised were largely constructive. Redevelopment
of the SharePoint portal was a frequent theme raised by
CABs and shared by staff. Commentary was also provided
by DISER and MBIE on their interaction and engagement
with JAS-ANZ.
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LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT
JAS-ANZ’s Learning and Development capabilities
enabled us to deliver high-quality online training that
could be accessed globally.
To support the learning and development strategy, a
new Learning Management System (LMS) was
developed and published, providing a platform for the
delivery of internal and external training. The training
can be delivered in flexible and tailored formats
including online modules, live webinars, videos and
case studies that support all learners’ requirements.
Offering predominantly online courses allows the
training to be delivered globally.

A range of subject matter experts have supported the
development of a comprehensive induction and training
program with the aim of ensuring that a strong foundation
is in place for our staff and contract assessors.
Externally, the JAS-ANZ Accelerate Training Academy
project has progressed rapidly with the development of
a range of training packages that focus on improving the
knowledge and skills of external stakeholders including
CABs, scheme owners and developers, regulators, and
certified and yet-to-be-certified organisations.
The Academy is on track to launch in August 2020.

The New Assessor Program was developed and gradually
rolled out to all staff and contract assessors. The scope of
the project was to review and redevelop the end-to-end
process for recruiting, induction, onboarding, and evaluation
of new assessors.
ACTIVITIES

OUTCOMES

Launch new LMS platform
with content for external
stakeholders

The new LMS platform was developed during the first half of 2020. The external
JAS-ANZ Accelerate Training Academy will launch in August 2020.

Develop and deliver
training for CABs, scheme
developers and owners,
regulators and service
organisations on
program level standards,
product certification
schemes

A range of training packages has been developed for stakeholders including, but
not limited to:

Develop ‘next generation’
program

The JAS-ANZ Futures Program was expected to launch in January 2021, but has
now been rescheduled to January 2022.

•

Introduction to ISO/IEC 17021-1 Management System Certification.

•

Introduction to ISO/IEC 17065 Product Certification.

•

Product Testing and Certification (with NATA).

•

Emotional Intelligence for Auditors and Assessors.
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ANNEX 1 – PROGRESS TOWARDS OBJECTIVES LISTED IN THE JAS-ANZ
STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT 2019–22
STATUS AT
THEME

ACTIVITY

30 JUNE

NOTES

2020
Improving CAB
Performance

Building a
Portfolio
of Viable
Schemes

Incorporate self-evaluation
into assessment routine

In progress

Self-evaluation is used as part of the new
application process and in a customised
form for the NDIS scheme. This work has
been affected by enforced changes to
assessment practices and has been delayed,
but remains significant.

Develop ranking algorithm
for certifiers

Deferred

Contract terms were agreed with Monash
University, but commencement was deferred
due to travel and social restrictions. It was
expected that the project could commence
in September, but further delay must be
expected due to increasing restrictions in
Victoria. The concept and method are now
part of an exchange with UKAS.

Evaluate the use of
self-declarations

In progress

This work item was deferred in order to
manage changes to assessment practices.
It remains significant.

Develop and conduct trials
for use of technology in
assessment

Deferred

This item will need to be reworked to
reflect the increased significance of remote
assessment and surveillance. We will focus
on video-based remote activity. The trial
based on Google Glass may not proceed
until circumstances make it feasible.

Evaluate program for
endorsed schemes

In progress

A full evaluation of the endorsed scheme
program was completed. All processes have
been redrafted, and a draft scheme owner
manual has been released for internal review.
Its release could be subject to some delay.

Develop an implementation
strategy to manage
schemes

Deferred

This has been deferred until the first half
of 2021. The implementation strategy
to support the scheme owner manual
is currently being drafted. In addition,
analysis of existing schemes has identified
rationalisation opportunities in the areas of
electrical product safety (current project)
gas products, and gas cylinder test stations.
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STATUS AT
THEME

ACTIVITY

30 JUNE

NOTES

2020

Engaging
Certified
Organisations

Management
Systems and
Quality

Product
Certification

Building a
Global Profile

Develop online services for
Scheme Owners

Deferred

This has been deferred until the first half
of 2021. The services to be available to
the scheme owners have been scoped.
Consultation will occur when the project
starts. Implementation will be linked with
redevelopment of CAB portals.

Consult with certified
organisations about what
information they need

Deferred

This has been deferred until the first half
of 2021.

Develop an information
package for trialling

Deferred

This has been deferred until the first half
of 2021.

Evaluate assessment
findings for ISO 9001:2015

Deferred

This has been deferred until the first half
of 2021.

Develop and deliver
training for CABs addressing
identified performance
problems

Completed

Work has been completed and is ready for
launch in July 2021.

Develop an education white
paper

Deferred

This has been deferred until the first half
of 2021.

Establish a Product
Reference Group (PRG) for
peer and expert evaluation
of product certifications

Completed

The infrastructure and trial for use of the
PRG have been completed. This is now a
standard process for use when triggered by
relevant events.

Develop assessment
routines tailored to the
performance needs of
specific product schemes

Completed

This has been completed and is current
practice.

Participate in IAF, ILAC, APAC
activities

Completed

Provide support for IAF
Technical Committee Chair

Completed

All proceeding through remote
communication. At present we do not
expect overseas meetings to recommence
before October 2021.

Provide support for APAC
Technical Committee Chair

Completed

Maintain Member Body
status for IECQ and IECEE

Completed

This is proceeding as intended. Arrangements
for transfer of the IECEx scheme to JAS-ANZ
were also completed.
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STATUS AT
THEME

ACTIVITY

30 JUNE

NOTES

2020
Contribute to IAF strategy
process

Completed

This has been completed.

Commence proposed
AANZFTA project on
approval

Cancelled

This project has been frequently delayed at
the ASEAN secretariat level. DISER convened
a meeting of ATIA participants in June to
discuss the AANZFTA Support Unit’s wish
to move forward. The consensus was that
delivery was not feasible and the preferred
position was that the project should be
postponed until such time as it was possible
to undertake the work program. DISER
supported this and put the case for deferral
to ASEAN which was accepted.

Participate in proposed
Pacific Islands Forum (PIF)
workshop

Completed

JAS-ANZ participated in the PIF workshop.
Subsequently, progress on post-workshop
consultation and needs analysis has been
interrupted and there is no indication when
this will resume. The most likely phases of
the work to go ahead are in the areas of
standards and measurement. Any work in
accreditation (testing and certification) will
require detailed exchanges on needs analysis
to determine scope and priorities.

Support DFAT’s Action Plan
to Address Non-Tariff Barriers

Completed

This is proceeding as intended (on request).

Work with the MBIE to
implement outcomes of
Review of Conformance
Policy and Infrastructure

Completed

This is proceeding as intended; however,
some public events will be delayed.

Participate in ATIA and SAM
meetings and work programs

Completed

This is proceeding as intended.

Work with the GAC to
support transfer of certifiers
to the scheme in 2019–20

Cancelled

There has been no progress on this from the
GAC. It is unlikely to proceed unless there
are some firm objectives and commitments
made by the GAC.
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STATUS AT
THEME

ACTIVITY

30 JUNE

NOTES

2020
Protecting
Brand and
Identity

Responding to
Technology

Hold industry
communications workshop

Completed

This was completed as part of branding
research but will require further work as the
branding project concludes.

Develop website
media portal for rolling
communications program

Completed

This has been completed.

Complete intellectual
property management
strategy

Deferred

This is in progress, but not currently
proceeding. This depends on finalisation of
the redevelopment of a compliance logo.

Review and develop
a plan for JAS-ANZ’s IT
infrastructure

Completed

This was completed ahead of time to coincide
with licensing terms. An upgrade has yet to be
completed in the Wellington office.

Commence digitisation of
records

Deferred

This project was affected by financial control
measures. It will resume after September as
it involves a relatively large capital outlay.

Upgrade CAB portals

In progress

This is a high priority to improve delivery but
more importantly to expand our capacity for
remote collaboration.
The original proposal was based on a
migration from a server-based SharePoint
to a cloud-based implementation. Over the
last several months we have discounted
the value of this as the prospective data
migration costs have increased and it has
become evident that SharePoint cannot
support process management to the extent
that we now need. An upgraded platform
based on Confluence combined with the
Jira workflow tool has been identified as a
strong replacement candidate.
A formal project plan has been prepared
and is going through its final internal
reviews. If agreed, then implementation is
likely to run over 5 quarters.
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INTERNAL ACTIVITY
STATUS AT
THEME

ACTIVITY

30 JUNE

NOTES

2020
People and
Capability

Learning and
Development

Complete and maintain
workforce planning

Completed

Completed for assessors

Continue to implement and
roll out the competency
behavioural framework

Completed

This is in progress.

Review and update
scheme-specific
competency requirement

In progress

This is in progress.

Staff workshop

Postponed

This is likely to be cancelled or held remotely.

Launch new LMS platform
with content for external
stakeholders

Completed

This is in progress and expected for July.

Develop and deliver
training for CABs, scheme
developers and owners,
regulators and service
organisations on:

Completed

This is in progress and expected for July.

Completed

A framework for the program was
completed. The launch date and delivery
mode may need to be re-examined.

•

program level standards

•

product certification
schemes

Develop ‘next generation’
program
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FINANCIAL: ACTIVITIES
FOR 2019–20
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP
AND INVESTMENT

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

JAS-ANZ is a self-sustained not-for-profit entity which
adheres to three key principles in its financial planning
endeavours to maintain self-sustainability:

As audited, a gain before income tax of $173,782 was
realised in the 2019–20 financial year. This outcome
exceeded the budgeted deficit before income tax
($1,432) by $175,214.

1. Ensure the organisation’s costs are met.
2. Consider Australian and New Zealand government
guidelines when setting fees.
3. Apply a risk premium, ranging from 0 to 15 per cent, to
activities that have a higher-than-average cost profile.
In accordance with our three principles, the Board aims to
ensure that JAS-ANZ operates on terms that provide:

This outcome was realised under COVID-19 conditions
and was due to the following differences against the
budget:
Lower revenue, mainly for:
•

surveillance and witnessing assessments, including
recoverable travel, accommodation and meals

•

National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) activities.

•

adequate cash reserves to meet future liabilities
or shocks

•

insulation for the Australian and New Zealand
governments from any claims arising from operations

•

contractor fees, in the areas of on-site assessment works,
and recoverable travel, accommodation and meals

•

continued re-investment in capacity-building.

•

salary and employee expenses

•

professional fees

•

occupancy costs.

The Board has achieved its objective of maintaining
reserves of cash and cash equivalents at liquidity levels
necessary, in a worst-case-scenario, to self-fund six months
of operating activities. This objective will continue to be
observed in accordance with governance processes.
In a financial year impacted by COVID-19, the Board has
been pro-active in managing cash flow by deferring
discretionary expenditure, delaying employment of new
staff, and improving the turnover of accounts receivable.
Investment in capacity building, though impacted by
COVID-19, was focused on the successful development
and deployment of the JAS-ANZ Accelerate Training
Academy; utilising methods of remote assessment,
especially under COVID-19 circumstances; and
commissioning a design for a new JAS-ANZ logo, which is
expected to be more robust against fraud and misuse.

Lower costs, mainly for:

Offset by higher costs, generally for:
•

depreciation and amortisation.
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Table 9. Material variations between the 2019–20 budget and the audited outcome.
OUTCOME

BUDGET

DIFFERENCE

$

$

$

Revenue

8,330,583

8,793,000

(462,417)

Contractor fees

(1,974,445)

(2,350,000)

375,555

Salary and employee expenses

(3,448,900)

(3,705,000)

256,100

Depreciation and amortisation

(270,338)

(80,000)

(190,338)

Occupancy costs

(180,037)

(358,000)

177,963

Professional fees

(492,004)

(568,000)

75,996

Gain/(deficit) before
income tax

173,782

(1,432)

175,214
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STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
ABN 49 614 982 550
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note
Revenue
Accountancy expenses
Advertising expenses
Auditor’s remuneration
Bad and doubtful debts
Bank charges
Contractor fees
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Freight and cartage
Interest paid
IT maintenance and support
Occupancy costs
Professional fees
Salary and employee expenses
Salary on costs
Superannuation contributions
Travel and accommodation expenses
Other expenses from ordinary activities
Gain before income tax
Income tax expense
Gain / (loss) attributable to JAS-ANZ

2
3

4

5

2020
$
8,330,583
(20,875)
(45,932)
(28,500)
(73,580)
(27,344)
(1,974,445)
(270,338)
(1,641)
(28,160)
(221,909)
(180,037)
(492,004)
(3,448,900)
(213,638)
(272,129)
(521,155)
(336,214)
173,782
173,782

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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2019
$
8,447,767
(218)
(64,911)
(28,500)
(113,508)
(28,655)
(2,141,098)
(111,493)
(5,129)
(7,006)
(174,163)
(364,244)
(296,088)
(3,520,185)
(157,219)
(272,741)
(621,999)
(451,462)
89,148
(226,894)
(137,746)
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JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
ABN 49 614 982 550
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

Note
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other current assets
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILTIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Financial liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions
Financial liabilities
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Retained earnings
TOTAL EQUITY

2020
$

6
7
8

6,212,064
962,144
898,833
8,073,041

5,619,195
1,429,273
1,109,982
8,158,450

9
10

428,538
1,344,184
1,772,722
9,845,763

153,352
20,752
174,104
8,332,554

11
12
13

462,543
540,955
330,292
1,333,790

537,844
480,561
16,972
1,035,377

12
13

64,273
1,027,223
1,091,496
2,425,286
7,420,477

50,482
50,482
1,085,859
7,246,695

7,420,477
7,420,477

7,246,695
7,246,695

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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2019
$
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
ABN 49 614 982 550
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
Retained
earnings
$
Balance at 1 July 2018
Loss attributable to the entity
Balance at 30 June 2019
Gain attributable to the entity
Balance at 30 June 2020

7,384,441
(137,746)
7,246,695
173,782
7,420,477

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

Page |3

Total
$
7,384,441
(137,746)
7,246,695
173,782
7,420,477
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JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
ABN 49 614 982 550
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Interest paid
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Net GST paid
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating
activities

15

2020
$

2019
$

9,339,090
(28,160)
(7,910,229)
77,707
(232,930)

8,078,994
(7,006)
(8,506,515)
81,102
(153,252)

1,245,478

(506,677)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Net cash (used in) investing activities

(497,850)
(497,850)

(24,057)
(24,057)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liabilities
Net cash (used in) financing activities

(154,759)
(154,759)

(99,504)
(99,504)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held
Cash at beginning of financial year
Cash at end of financial year

6

592,869
5,619,195
6,212,064

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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(630,238)
6,249,433
5,619,195
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JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
ABN 49 614 982 550
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

1

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
This financial report covers Joint Accreditation System of Australia and New Zealand (JAS-ANZ)
as an individual entity.
The financial report was authorised for issue by the Governing Board on the 10th September
2020.
Basis of Preparation
Management have prepared the financial statements on the basis that JAS-ANZ is a nonreporting entity because there are no users dependent on general purpose financial reports. This
financial report is therefore a special purpose financial report.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the mandatory Australian
Accounting Standards and the significant accounting policies disclosed below, which
Management have determined appropriate. Such accounting policies are consistent with those
of previous periods unless stated otherwise.
The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs unless otherwise stated in the notes. Material
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below
and have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated. The amounts presented in the
financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.
Accounting Policies
a.

Revenue

Revenue recognition
JAS-ANZ has applied AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (AASB 15) and AASB 1058:
Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 1058) for the first time in the current year. The
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be presented under AASB 118:
Revenue and AASB 1004. The details of accounting policies under AASB 118 and AASB 1004 are
disclosed separately since they are different from those under AASB 15 and AASB 1058.
Revenue recognition related to the provision of services is determined with reference to the
stage of completion of the transaction at reporting date where the outcome of the contract can
be estimated reliably. Stage of completion is determined with reference to the services
performed to date as a percentage of total anticipated services to be performed.
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JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
ABN 49 614 982 550
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

a.

Revenue (Continued)

Interest Income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax.
In the comparative period
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after
considering any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed. Any consideration deferred is
treated as the provision of finance and is discounted at a rate of interest that is generally
accepted in the market for similar arrangements. The difference between the amount initially
recognised and the amount ultimately received is interest revenue.
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, which, for floating rate
financial assets is the rate inherent in the instrument.
Revenue recognition related to the provision of services is determined with reference to the
stage of completion of the transaction at reporting date where the outcome of the contract can
be estimated reliably. Stage of completion is determined with reference to the services
performed to date as a percentage of total anticipated services to be performed.
All revenue is stated net of the amounts of goods and services tax (GST).
b.

Income Tax

The income tax revenue / (expense) for a year comprises current income tax income / (expenses)
and deferred tax income / (expenses).
Current income tax expenses charged to the profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income
calculated using applicable income tax rates enacted, or substantially enacted, as at the reporting
date in the relevant taxation authority. Current tax assets / (liabilities) are therefore measured
at the amounts expected to be recovered from / (paid to) the relevant taxation authority in
Australia or New Zealand.
As at 22 August 2014 JAS-ANZ have been issued a private ruling confirming it is exempt from
income tax in Australia on Australian taxable income only based on the taxation privileges and
immunities of prescribed International Organisations as noted in the First Schedule of the
International Organisations (Privileges & Immunities) Act 1963. It remains taxable in New
Zealand.
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JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
ABN 49 614 982 550
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

b.

Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liability
balances during the year as well as unused tax losses.
Current and deferred income tax income / (expense) is charged or credited directly to equity
instead of the profit or loss when the tax relates to items that are credited or charged directly to
equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ascertained based on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets also result where amounts have been fully expensed but future
tax deductions are available. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination. Where there is no effect
on accounting or taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at reporting dates. Their measurement also reflects the manner which
management expects to recover or settle the carrying amount of the related asset or liability.
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is no longer deemed probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. JAS-ANZ has unused carried forward tax
losses of $557,472 recognised over consecutive years losses in New Zealand operations.
c.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables include amounts due from members as well as amounts receivable
from customers for goods sold or services provided in the ordinary course of business.
Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are
classified as current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets.
Accounts receivable are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. Refer to
Note 1(f) for further discussion on the determination of impairment losses.
d.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis, less depreciation and impairment losses.
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JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
ABN 49 614 982 550
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

d.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable,
any accumulated depreciation and impairment.
In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to its estimated
recoverable amount and impairment losses recognised either in profit or loss or as a revaluation
decrease if the impairment losses relate to a revalued asset. A formal assessment of recoverable
amount is made when impairment indicators are present (refer to Note 1(f) for details of
impairment).
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as expenses in profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets are depreciated on a diminishing value basis over the
asset’s useful life to JAS-ANZ commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance date.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amounts.
These gains or losses are included in the Statement of Income and Expenditure. When revalued
assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred
to retained earnings.
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of Fixed Asset
Plant and Equipment
Computer Equipment
e.

Depreciation Rate
10-50%
13-100%

Leases

At inception of a contract, JAS-ANZ assesses if the contract contains or is a lease under AASB 16
Leases. Where a lease exists, a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability are
recognised by JAS-ANZ where JAS-ANZ is a lessee. However, all contracts that are classified as
short-term leases (i.e. lease with remaining lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low
value assets will be recognised as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
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JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
ABN 49 614 982 550
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

e.

Leases (Continued)

the lease.
Initially, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments still to be paid
at commencement date. The lease payments are discounted at the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, JAS-ANZ uses the incremental borrowing rate.
The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability as
mentioned above, any lease payments made at or before the commencement day as well as any
initial direct costs. The subsequent measurement of the right-of-use assets is at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Where a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that JAS-ANZ anticipates exercising a purchase option, the specific asset is depreciated
over the useful life of the underlying asset.
JAS-ANZ does not act as a lessor in relation to lease contracts.
f.

Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, JAS-ANZ reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the
asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the Statement of Income and
Expenditure.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, JAS-ANZ
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
g.

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the JAS-ANZ becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
(except for instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are
expensed as incurred).
Impairment of Financial Assets
At the end of the reporting period JAS-ANZ assesses whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
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JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
ABN 49 614 982 550
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

g.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial assets original effective interest rate.
Impairment on loans and receivables is reduced through utilising an allowance account, and all
other impairment losses on financial assets at amortised cost are taken directly to the asset.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in
profit or loss.
Financial assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Classification
On initial recognition, JAS-ANZ classifies its financial assets measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless JAS-ANZ
changes its business model for managing financial assets. JAS-ANZ does not hold any financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss or at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Amortised cost
Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:
-

the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

-

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

JAS-ANZ’s financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables,
term deposits, and cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position.
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JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
ABN 49 614 982 550
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

g.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less provision for impairment.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains or losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
Financial liabilities
JAS-ANZ measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
The financial liabilities of the entity comprise trade and other payables, and finance lease
liabilities.
h.

Foreign Currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the
year-end exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried
at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values where determined.
Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in the
Statement of Income and Expenditure, except where deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow
or net investment hedge.
Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised directly in
equity to the extent that the gain or loss is directly recognised in equity, otherwise the exchange
differences are recognised in the Statement of Income and Expenditure.
i.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Provision is made for the entity’s liability for short-term employee benefits arising from services
rendered by employees to the end of the reporting period. Short-term employee benefits that
are expected to be wholly settled within 12 months have been measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liability is settled.
The entity’s obligation for short-term employee benefits are recognised as a part of provisions in
the Statement of Financial Position.
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JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
ABN 49 614 982 550
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

i.

Employee Benefits (Continued)

Contributions are made by JAS-ANZ to an employee superannuation fund and are charged as
expenses when incurred.
Other long-term employee benefits
JAS-ANZ classifies employees’ long service leave entitlements as other long-term employee
benefits as they are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service. Provision is made
for JAS-ANZ’s obligation for other long-term employee benefits, which are measured at the
present value of the expected future payments to be made to employees. Expected future
payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels, durations of service and
employee departures, and are discounted at rates determined by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates that
approximate the terms of the obligations. Upon the remeasurement of obligations for other
long-term employee benefits, the net change in the obligation is recognised in profit or loss
classified under employee benefits expense.
JAS-ANZ’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current provisions
in its Statement of Financial Position, except where the entity does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, in which case the
obligations are presented as current liabilities.
j.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when JAS-ANZ has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result, and that outflow
can be reliably measured. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required
to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.
k.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting period
for goods and services received by the entity during the reporting period that remain unpaid. The
balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of
recognition of the liability.
l.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other shortterm highly liquid investments with original maturities of twelve months or less.
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JOINT ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
ABN 49 614 982 550
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

m. Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) or the Inland
Revenue Department (IRD).
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The
net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO or IRD is included with trade and
other receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.
Cash flows in the Statement of Cash Flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component
of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.
n.

Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to
changes in presentation for the current financial year.
o.

Key Estimates
(i)

Impairment – general

JAS-ANZ assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluation of conditions and
events specific to the entity that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts
of relevant assets are reassessed using value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key
assumptions.
(ii)

Employee benefits

For the purpose of measurement, AASB 119: Employee Benefits defines obligations for shortterm employee benefits as obligations expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after year
end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service. As JASANZ expects all of its employees would use all of their annual leave entitlements earned during
a reporting period before 12 months after the end of the reporting period, JAS-ANZ believes that
obligations for annual leave entitlements satisfy the definition of short term employee benefits
and, therefore, can be measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid to
employees when the obligations are settled.
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o.

Key Estimates (Continued)
(iii)

Performance obligations under AASB 15

To identify a performance obligation under AASB 15, the agreement must be sufficiently
specific to be able to determine when the obligation is satisfied. Management exercises
judgement to determine whether the agreement is sufficiently specific by taking into account
any conditions specified in the arrangement, explicit or implicit, regarding the promised goods
or services. In making this assessment, management includes the nature / type, cost / value,
quantity and the period of transfer related to the goods or services agreed.
(iv)

Lease term and Option to Extend under AASB 16

The lease term is defined as the non-cancellable period of a lease together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if JAS-ANZ is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and also periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if JAS-ANZ is reasonably certain not
to exercise that option. The options that are reasonably going to be exercised is a key
management judgement that JAS-ANZ will make. JAS-ANZ has not included extension options (a
period of five years expiring in February 2030 for Australia premises and a period of three years
expiring in March 2025 for New Zealand premises) in the calculation under AASB 16.
(v)

Going Concern

The COVID-19 outbreak has impacted the way of life in Australia and New Zealand. This has
affected the ability of JAS-ANZ to continue operations as usual and has impacted on its
operating results. In accordance with national guidelines, JAS-ANZ has implemented remote
working arrangements in response to government requirements and to ensure the wellbeing
and safety of all employees.
It is not possible to reliably estimate the duration and severity of the impact of COVID-19, as
well as the impact on the financial position and results of JAS-ANZ for future periods. However,
based on analysis of the financial performance and position, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. JAS-ANZ believes at this point in time that there is no
significant doubt about the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

p.

New and Amended Accounting Standards Adopted by JAS-ANZ

Initial application of AASB 16
JAS-ANZ has adopted AASB 16 Leases under the modified retrospective approach, with the effect
of initially applying AASB 16 recognised at 1 July 2019. In accordance with AASB 16 the
comparatives for the 2019 reporting period have not been restated. JAS-ANZ has recognised a
lease liability and right-of-use asset for all leases (with the exception of short term and low value
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p.

New and Amended Accounting Standards Adopted by JAS-ANZ (Continued)

leases) recognised as operating leases in the prior year under AASB 117 where JAS-ANZ is the
lessee. The lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments.
JAS-ANZ’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019 was used to discount these lease
payments.
The right of use assets for the premises was measured at its carrying amount as if AASB 16: Leases
had been applied since commencement date, but discounted using JAS-ANZ’s incremental
borrowing rate per lease term on 1 July 2019.
The right of use assets for the remaining leases were measured and recognised in the statement
of financial position as at 1 July 2019 by taking into consideration the lease liability, prepaid and
accrued lease payments previously recognised as at 1 July 2019 (that are related to the lease).
The following practical expedients have been used by JAS-ANZ in applying AASB 16 for the first
time:
-

-

leases that have remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 July 2019 have been
accounted for in the same way as short-term leases;
the use of hindsight to determine these terms on contracts that have options to extend
or terminate;
applying AASB 16 to leases previously identified as leases under AASB 117: Leases and
Interpretation 4: Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease without
reassessing whether they are, or contain, a lease at the date of initial application; and
not applying AASB 16 to leases previously not identified as containing a lease under AASB
117 and Interpretation 4.

Initial application of AASB 15
JAS-ANZ has applied AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (AASB 15) and AASB 1058:
Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 1058) for the first time in the current year. The
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be presented under AASB 118:
Revenue and AASB 1004: Contributions.
JAS-ANZ has elected to apply AASB 1058 retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed
contracts at the date of initial application. A classification change occurred which resulted in the
deferred income now being classified as contract liability in line with wording used in AASB 15.
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2020
$
2

Revenue and Other Income
Revenue
Sales revenue:
Rendering of services
Other revenue:
Interest received
Other revenue
Total revenue

3

8,356,139

71,971
103
72,074
8,330,583

88,581
3,047
91,628
8,447,767

28,500

28,500

270,338

111,493

Gain before Income Tax
Expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

5

8,258,509

Auditors Remuneration
Auditors remuneration:
Auditing of the financial report

4

2019
$

Income Tax
Deferred income tax expense (derecognition of
deferred tax asset)
Being:
Movement in deferred tax asset – Non-current
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(226,894)
(226,894)

-

(226,894)
(226,894)
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2020
$
6

2019
$

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Term deposit

2,379,586
3,832,478
6,212,064

1,855,319
3,763,876
5,619,195

Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is
reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents

7

6,212,064
6,212,064

5,619,195
5,619,195

1,185,245
(361,759)
823,486

1,596,437
(287,800)
1,308,637

83,471
55,187
962,144

59,713
60,923
1,429,273

Trade and other Receivables
Current
Trade debtors
Less: Provision for doubtful debtors
GST receivable
Other debtors

Refer to Note 17 for further information in relation to GST receivable from the Inland
Revenue Department of New Zealand.
8

Other Current Assets
747,165
151,668
898,833

Accrued revenue
Prepayments
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9

2019
$

1,431,790
(1,003,252)
428,538
428,538

1,011,902
(858,550)
153,352
153,352

Property, Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Total property, plant and equipment

10

2020
$

Right of Use Assets
JAS-ANZ entered into a three-year hire purchase / rental agreement on new server
and AV equipment which ceases on 22 April 2023; a five-year property lease at Suites
2, 3 & 4 FECCA House, Phipps Close, Deakin, ACT 2600 which ceases on 28 February
2025; and a three-year lease at Berl House, 108 The Terrace, Wellington, New Zealand
which ceases on 1 March 2022.
The option to extend or terminate are contained in the property leases entered into
by JAS-ANZ. These clauses provide JAS-ANZ opportunities to manage leases in order
to align with its strategies. Refer to Note 1(o) for an explanation of the initial adoption
of AASB 16 in the current financial year.

Leased plant and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Leased premises
Accumulated depreciation
Total right of use assets
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141,681
(9,033)
132,648

63,718
(42,966)
20,752

1,371,106
(159,570)
1,211,536
1,344,184

20,752
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2020
$
10

11

Right of Use Assets (Continued)
Movement in carrying amounts on application of AASB 16:
Leased plant and equipment:
Recognised on initial application of AASB 16:
141,681
Depreciation expense
(9,033)
Net carrying amount
132,648

-

Leased premises:
Recognised on initial application of AASB 16:
Amortisation expense
Net carrying amount

1,371,106
(159,570)
1,211,536

-

306,862
100,093
55,588
462,543

271,835
266,009
537,844

264,370
276,585
64,273
605,228

219,550
261,011
50,482
531,043

540,955
64,273
605,228

480,561
50,482
531,043

Trade and Other Payables
Current
Sundry payable
Accrued expenses
Trade creditors

12

2019
$

Provisions
Provision for annual leave
Provision for long service leave – Current
Provision for long service leave – Non-current
Total provisions
Analysis of total provisions
Current
Non-current
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13

2020
$

2019
$

Hire purchase – server and AV
Less: Unexpired interest charges

135,764
(5,426)
130,338

17,464
(492)
16,972

Lease liability - premises
Less: Unexpired interest charges

1,355,408
(128,231)
1,227,177
1,357,515

16,972

330,292
1,027,223
1,357,515

16,972
16,972

Financial Liabilities

Total provisions
Analysis of total provisions
Current
Non-current

14

Capital and Leasing Commitments
Operating lease commitments
Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in
the financial statements:
Payable – minimum lease payments
Not later than 12 months
Between 12 months and five years

9,569
13,253
22,822

290,753
191,713
482,466

Finance lease commitments
Non-cancellable finance leases contracted for and capitalised in the
financial statements:
Payments – minimum lease payments
Not later than 12 months
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2020
$
14

2019
$

Capital and Leasing Commitments (Continued)
JAS-ANZ has elected not to apply the requirements of AASB 16 to the following leases,
for which the underlying assets are considered to be low value:
JAS-ANZ’s New Zealand office entered into a five-year lease / rental agreement for a
new photocopier which ceases on 8 July 2023.
JAS-ANZ’s Australia office entered into a five-year lease / rental agreement for a new
photocopier which ceases on 4 April 2022.

15

Cash Flow Information
Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with
gain / (loss) after income tax
Gain / (loss) after Income Tax

173,782

(137,746)

Non-cash flows in gain
Depreciation

270,338

111,493

664,212
14,066
(75,301)
124,196
74,185
1,245,478

(609,977)
226,894
(81,555)
10,167
(21,831)
(502,555)

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease / (increase) in receivables
Decrease in tax assets
Decrease / (increase) in prepayments
(Decrease) / Increase in payables
Increase in fixed assets
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
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16

Financial Risk Management
Financial Risk Management Policies
JAS-ANZ’s financial instruments consist primarily of deposits with banks, local money
market instruments, short-term investments, accounts receivable / payable and leases.
The Governing Board’s overall risk management strategy seeks to assist JAS-ANZ in
meeting its financial targets, whilst minimising potential adverse effects on financial
performance.
Risk management policies are approved and reviewed by the Governing Board on a
regular basis. These include credit risk policies and future cash flow requirements.
JAS-ANZ does not have any derivative instruments as at 30 June 2020.
The main risks the entity is exposed to through its financial instruments are liquidity risk
and credit risk.
Liquidity risk
JAS-ANZ manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves by continuously
monitoring forecasts and actual cash flows.
Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default in contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to JAS-ANZ. JAS-ANZ does not have any significant credit risk
exposure to any single counterparty. The carrying amount of the financial assets
recorded in the financial statements represents the company’s maximum exposure to
credit risk.

17

Contingencies
Included in the trade and other receivables (Note 7) balance is an amount receivable
from the Inland Revenue Department of New Zealand (IRD) of $141,660 for current and
prior year GST credits. The credits at 30 June 2020 will continue to be available for this
purpose, albeit recovery has been slow due to previous tax reconciliation issues between
JAS-ANZ and IRD. JAS-ANZ has re-established dialogue with IRD and will continue to seek
recovery of these GST credits.
P a g e | 22
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18

Events after the Reporting Period
There have been no events subsequent to reporting date that require disclosure in the
financial statements.

19

Entity Details
The office and principal place of business of JAS-ANZ is:
Joint Accreditation System of Australia and New Zealand
Australian Office:
Suites 3 & 4, FECCA House, 4 Phipps Close,
Deakin, ACT 2600, Australia
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND

OF

JOINT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying special purpose financial report of the Joint Accreditation System
of Australia and New Zealand (JAS-ANZ), which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2020, the
statement of income and expenditure, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and the Governing Board’s declaration.
In our opinion, the financial report of JAS-ANZ is prepared:
(i)

giving a true and fair view of the organisation’s financial position as at 30 June 2020 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii)

complying with Australian Accounting Standards – Special Purpose Financial Statements
Requirements.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Report section of our report. We are independent of the organisation in accordance with the ethical
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110: Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia.
We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 1(o)(v) of the financial report which notes the outbreak of
COVID-19 as a global pandemic and how this has been considered by the Governing
Board in the preparation of the financial report. The impact of COVID-19 is an
unprecedented event, which continues to cause a high level of uncertainty and
volatility. As set out in the financial statements, no adjustments have been made to
financial statements as at 30 June 2020 for the impacts of COVID-19. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.
Responsibilities of the Governing Board for the Financial Report
The Governing Board of the organisation are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Special Purpose
Financial Statements Requirements and for such internal control as the Governing Board determines
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the Governing Board is responsible for assessing the organisation’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Governing Board either intend to liquidate the
organisation or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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ACCREDITATION SYSTEM OF AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organisation’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Governing Board.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Governing Board’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the organisation’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the organisation
to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Governing Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

SBellchambers

SBellchambers (Sep 14, 2020 08:40 GMT+10)

Canberra, ACT
Dated this 10th day of September 2020

Shane Bellchambers, FCA
Registered Company Auditor
BellchambersBarrett
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